Questions and Answers on RFQ-BARDA-08-19
This document does not amend the terms and conditions of the solicitation in any manner; potential quoters have the duty to seek clarification from the contracting officer if they believe answers herein are inconsistent with the solicitation.
Questions are numbered; answers appear below the questions in italics.  Questions may have been combined and/or edited for clarity.
(1)  We request that the government provide several sample task orders for bidders to propose on.  

The Government will provide task orders during the contract ordering period.  For informational purposes only, a sample task order is attached to this document.  DO NOT PROPOSE ON THIS SAMPLE TASK ORDER, IT IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY TO PROVIDE QUOTERS AN EXAMPLE OF WHAT A TASK ORDER MAY INCLUDE.
(2) Is it possible to have CPFF task orders?   
No, only firm-fixed price or time and materials/labor hour task orders will be used.
(3) We need to confirm what is the basis for the costs, i.e. do we need to provide costs for the studies shown in Article 4.2.2, etc.?
The basis for the pricing is Exhibit A and the scope of work.  Do not propose prices for any specific task order at this time.
(4)  What are the requirements for the technical proposal, i.e. CVs, facilities, etc.?    Is there a page limit?
See Articles 1.0, 6.0.  No numerical page limit applies.
(5)  What are the requirements for the business proposal?   Do we need to submit costing details?
See Articles 1.0, 6.0.  You must submit pricing to the level of detail required by Articles 1.0 and 6.0, including Exhibit A.
(6) Does the Contractor Performance Report (Attachment 3) need to be completed at this time?
No. The Contractor Performance Report is used in contract administration.
(7) What assays are needed?  Will Clinical Pathology/ Histopathology/Hematology be required?
See the scope of work.  Additionally, see amendment 0001, which adds a list of items that shall be quoted and included in Exhibit A.
(8)  Can the Clinical Pathology/Hematology be subcontracted?
Yes.

SAMPLE TASK ORDER FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY; DO NOT QUOTE TO THIS; DO NOT PRICE TO THIS.
Study:
Immunogenicity Testing of Adjuvanted and Non-adjuvanted H5N1 Influenza Vaccine in Mice
Purpose:
The purpose of this GLP study is to assess the immunogenicity in mice of a pandemic influenza vaccine antigen (A/Indonesia/2005) formulated with and without each of two liquid adjuvants following one and two (IM) inoculations.  Animals will be administered test or control articles on Days 0 and 21 and sera will be collected for immunological analysis by inhibition of hemagglutination (HI) and microneutralization (MN) assays on Days 0, 21, and 35.  Animals will also be monitored for general health and well-being during the course of the study.  The results will be submitted in support of an IND for clinical evaluation of these vaccine formulations.

Study Design:

	Group
	Number
	Antigen
	Dose
(μg)
	Adjuvant
	Study Schedule

	
	
	
	
	
	Immunizations
	Bleeds

	1
	20
	None
	-
	-
	Day 0, 21
	Day 0, 21, 35

	2
	20
	H5N1
	1
	-
	Day 0, 21
	Day 0, 21, 35

	3
	20
	H5N1
	1
	X
	Day 0, 21
	Day 0, 21, 35

	4
	20
	H5N1
	1
	Y
	Day 0, 21
	Day 0, 21, 35


Study Location:

The testing will be carried out at a qualified CRO to be selected in accordance with government acquisition policies and procedures.
Compliance:

The study will be carried out in accordance with GLP principles and in compliance with all applicable statutory requirements pertaining to animal health and welfare.

Test animals:
Balb/c mice will be purchased by the CRO from a qualified vendor.  A total of 80 mice will be used in the study.
Test Articles:

An avian influenza vaccine antigen (A/Indonesia/2005) prepared from virus grown in eggs according to a procedure licensed for seasonal and H5N1 influenza vaccine manufacturing in the U.S. will be formulated with and without each of two liquid adjuvants to create the three test articles to be used in the study.  

Control Article:

 An appropriate placebo diluent (in place of adjuvant) will be mixed with antigen in the unadjuvanted formulation.  The same diluent (phosphate-buffered saline at the same pH as the antigen buffer) will be used in place of both antigen and adjuvant in the test control group. 

Rationale for Dose and Schedule:

The antigen dose (1 μg HA) was chosen based on prior experience that has shown a sub-maximal response, allowing the possibility of observing enhancement with the adjuvants.  The adjuvant dose (1:1 volumetric ratio with antigen) reflects the experience of both manufacturers in previous trials and in a licensed product.  The immunization schedule replicates the two-dose regimen proposed for the planned clinical trial.  
Methods:

Antigen, adjuvants, and diluent will be supplied separately, then mixed extemporaneously just prior to immunization in appropriate combinations to create the formulations described.  The antigen will be supplied in sealed vials at a concentration of 20 μg/ml (based on HA potency).  

Adjuvant meeting each manufacturer’s specifications will also be provided in sealed vials.  Separate vials will contain the diluent (phosphate-buffered saline).  To prepare the antigen:adjuvant mixtures, a volume of adjuvant equal to the volume of antigen will be withdrawn from its supply vial and introduced into a vial containing antigen.  The components will be gently mixed by hand-swirling.  The adjuvanted vaccine will then be taken up from the vial in a syringe and a volume of 0.1 ml administered IM to each mouse, accounting for an antigen dose of 1 μg HA in a 1:1 volumetric mixture with adjuvant.  To prepare the unadjuvanted formulation, the same procedure will be followed except that diluent will be used in place of adjuvant to maintain consistency of antigen volume and concentration.  For the control article, a 0.1 ml volume of diluent will be administered to the animals.  

The primary purpose of the study is to collect sera for immunological evaluation.  Blood will be collected before the first and second immunizations and two weeks after the latter.  The general health and well-being of the mice will also be monitored, and any serious observations, such as mortality, will be recorded.    

Evaluations:

Clinical observations: Performed once daily including weekends and holidays.  These observations will confirm the general health and viability of the animals and document the availability of food and water as well as qualitatively assess food/water intake and urine/feces output.

Serology: Performed on blood collected on Days 0, 21, and 35.  Samples will be submitted for microneutralization (MN) and inhibition of hemagglutination (HAI) testing.  Strain-specific reagents will be used, and standard assay protocols will be followed.


Draft Audited report will be provided as soon as reasonably possible after completion of serological testing of the samples from the study.
